
 Find out more online:
www.worcestershire.gov.uk

This document can be made available in other formats (large print, audio tape, computer disk and 
Braille) on request from Democratic Services on telephone number 01905 846621 or by emailing 

democraticServices@worcestershire.gov.uk

Worcestershire County Council 

 
 
 

Agenda 
Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel 
 
Friday, 26 May 2023, 10.00 am 
Council Chamber, County Hall, Worcester 
 
All County Councillors are invited to attend and participate 
 
 
 
 



 

DISCLOSING INTERESTS 
 

There are now 2 types of interests: 
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests' 

 
WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)? 
 

• Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain  
• Sponsorship by a 3rd party of your member or election expenses 
• Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where 

you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares 
• Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer) 
• Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued 

share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire. 
 

      NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you 
 
WHAT MUST I DO WITH A DPI? 

• Register it within 28 days and  
• Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting  

- you must not participate and you must withdraw. 
      NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI 
 

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'? 
• No need to register them but 
• You must declare them at a particular meeting where: 

  You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have  
a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion. 

 
WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY? 
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the 
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest. 
 
DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF I HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI? 

Not normally. You must withdraw only if it: 
• affects your pecuniary interests OR  

relates to a planning or regulatory matter 
• AND it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 

 
DON'T FORGET 

• If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence 
and nature – 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient    

• Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda  
- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little 

• Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be 
referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000 
and disqualification up to 5 years 

•  Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases. 
 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services July 2012       WCC/SPM summary/f 



 

Agenda produced and published by the Assistant Director for Legal and Governance, County Hall, Spetchley 
Road, Worcester WR5 2NP 
 
To obtain further information or a copy of this agenda contact Alyson Grice/Alison Spall, Overview and 
Scrutiny Officers on 01905 844962/846607, scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website 
 
Date of Issue: Thursday, 18 May 2023 

 
 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Friday, 26 May 2023, 10.00 am, County Hall, Worcester 
 
Membership:  Cllr Alastair Adams (Chairman), Cllr Tony Muir (Vice Chairman), 

Cllr Mel Allcott, Cllr Paul Harrison, Cllr Aled Luckman, 
Cllr Emma Marshall, Cllr Beverley Nielsen, Cllr David Ross and 
Cllr Emma Stokes 
 

Agenda 
 
Item No Subject 

 
Page No 

  
1  Apologies and Welcome 

 
 

 
2  Declarations of Interest and of any Party Whip 

 
 

 
3  Public Participation 

Members of the public wishing to take part should notify the Assistant 
Director for Legal and Governance in writing or by e-mail indicating both 
the nature and content of their proposed participation no later than 
9.00am on the working day before the meeting (in this case 25 May 
2023). Further details are available on the Council’s website.  Enquiries 
can also be made through the telephone number/e-mail address listed in 
this agenda and on the website. 
 

 

 
4  Confirmation of the Minutes of the previous meeting 

Previously circulated. 
 

 

 
5  Street Works 

(Indicative timing: 10.05 – 11.00am) 
 

1 - 16 

 
6  Work Programme 

(Indicative timing: 11.00 to 11.10am) 
 

17 - 20 

 
NOTES  
 
Webcasting  
Members of the Panel are reminded that meetings of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel are Webcast on the Internet and will be stored electronically and accessible through the 
Council's Website. Members of the public are informed that if they attend this meeting their 
images and speech may be captured by the recording equipment used for the Webcast and 
may also be stored electronically and accessible through the Council's Website. 



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 26 May 2023 
 

 
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
26 MAY 2023 
 
STREET WORKS 
 
Summary 
 

1. The Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Highways and Transport and Senior 
Officers from the Economy and Infrastructure Directorate have been invited to the 
meeting to provide detailed information on a number of areas relating to the co-
ordination, compliance and control of Street Works activities on the highway. 
 

Background 
 

2. The Panel has identified the following issues which it wishes to consider in detail 
including the procedures and operating practices relating to the following activities: 
 

• Road closure diversion 
• Reinstatement defects 
• Section 58 restrictions – protection of resurfaced footways and carriageways  
• Emergency and urgent work permit applications 
• Lane Rental Scheme feasibility  

 
Street Works Overview 
 

3. In 2022, Worcestershire County Council’s (the Council) team: 
 
• Processed 60,212 applications for permits and variations to permits each one 

reviewed and with specific conditions applied to minimise impact on traffic flow 
and impact on network.  
 

• Carried out 48,741 inspection checks including: 
o compliance with permit conditions,  
o occupancy and progress of works,  
o compliance with health and safety regulations with respect to protection of 

the public from harm,  
o reinstatement standards check 

 
• Issued 4258 fixed penalty notices: 

o Regulation 20 – breach of permit condition 
o Regulation 19 – working without a permit 
o Section 74 – unreasonably prolonged works 
o Section 70 – failure to register interim or permanent reinstatement 

 
4. The Council’s Street Works team has invested the permit income in staff 

resource and technology to enable an increase in compliance checks and 
enforcement. 

Page 1

AGENDA ITEM 5



 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 26 May 2023 
 
 

 
 
Road Closures 
 

5. In certain cases, the location or nature of the works being undertaken will make it 
impossible to achieve a safe working area and maintain traffic or pedestrian flows 
around the works. In these cases, a carriageway, footway, or footpath closure will 
be required. This option can only be considered if there is a suitable diversion 
route for the affected traffic or pedestrians.  Under no circumstances will 
pedestrian access be denied to any property or premises. 
 

6. A risk assessment must be carried out on any diversion route to ensure it is 
suitable and safe for the diverted traffic or pedestrians. 

 
7. If it is necessary to close a road to vehicular traffic, a Temporary Traffic 

Regulation Order or Notice will be required, and sufficient notice must be given to 
comply with statutory obligations. For emergency works, Temporary Traffic 
Regulation Orders or Notices should be requested as soon as their need is 
recognised. 

 
8. Every effort should be made to maintain pedestrian access past the works and to 

maintain vehicular access to all properties and premises within the closure area.  
 

9. If a safe route past the works for motor vehicles cannot be provided, then 
consideration is given to maintaining two-way access for pedal cycles.  

 
10. In some circumstances a full road closure may be avoided by the introduction of 

one-way traffic to reduce disruption and enable traffic flows to be maintained. 
This option can only be considered if there is a suitable diversion route for the 
affected traffic. Again, a Temporary Traffic Regulation Order or Notice will be 
required, and a risk assessment carried out on the diversion route. 

14569

24817 21250 31057

48741

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

60000

2 0 1 8 2 0 1 9 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 1 2 0 2 2

NUMBER OF INSPECTIONS CARRIED 
OUT OVER A FIVE YEAR PERIOD  

N
um

be
r o

f I
ns

pe
ct

io
ns

 

Year

Page 2



 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 26 May 2023 
 
 

11. Diversion routes have to cater for every type of vehicle that could be expected on 
the road that is closed. The Council can’t, for example, divert traffic from a normal 
road onto a motorway, because tractors and cycles couldn’t then follow the 
diversion. Neither can the Council divert traffic onto roads that are not suitable for 
larger vehicles. 
 

12. This means A road diversions will normally take you via other A roads rather than 
onto B or C class roads. Those who know the area, often will use country lanes to 
give a faster route round the closed road. However, following the diversion signs 
is essential for HGV traffic to prevent vehicles having to make unsafe turning or 
reversing manoeuvres or travel down unsuitable roads potentially damaging the 
structures and environment of those lanes or roads. 

 
13. To meet the requirement to ensure the safe management of the diversion of all 

vehicles, particularly larger vehicles, diversion route signage is placed at points 
on the network where those diversionary movements must take place, which is 
often a good distance from the actual closure. The advanced warning signage of 
closures is aimed at local and regular users to be alerted to the upcoming closure 
and to check the details which are always online through the one.network 
website. In addition, during the closure, signs will state access to frontages and 
businesses.  

 
14. It is the responsibility of the works promoter to inform all stakeholders who are 

likely to be affected by the road closure or road restriction. This could include 
residents, parish councils, schools, businesses and churches. Every application 
is different, so all stakeholders in the area affected by the road closure have to be 
carefully considered, then informed and/or consulted. This allows stakeholders to 
make alternative arrangements during the closure period. The Council require 
evidence of this at the planning stage of any planned closure. 

 
Section 58 
 

15. Section 58 and 58A of the New Roads and Street Works Act allows a highway 
authority to place restrictions on any Street Works activity following authority 
works or major utility work. Such restrictions prohibit any planned street works 
following any major surfacing works depending on the type of work that has taken 
place: 

• New Roads and Reconstructed Roads – 5 years 
• Resurfaced Roads – 3 years 
• Other Works – 1 Year/ 6 Months 

 
16. A proposed section 58 notice will be submitted in advance of the date on which 

surfacing works are expected to start, providing utility companies or private 
contractors/developers an opportunity to conduct their works in advance of the 
restriction coming into force.  
 

17. This process promotes better works planning and co-ordination, helps minimise 
disruption to road users, and helps to prolong the life of the roads. 

 
18. A section 58 restriction doesn't prevent emergency works (such as gas escapes 

or loss of power) or customer connections from taking place. However, customer 

Page 3



 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 26 May 2023 
 
 

connections must not be undertaken until at least 21 days after the completion of 
the resurfacing works. 

 
19. The roll out of the superfast broadband network provides a new community 

connection and the economic and social benefit of a high-quality digital 
infrastructure, as such the works associated are well supported by legislation. 
Although early engagement for the co-ordination and planning of these works is 
actively encouraged by the Council there are occasions when they are applying 
to carry out works on a highway protected by Section 58. In this instance the 
legal requirement for the permit application is only 21 days post surfacing works 
completion as for emergency works. 

 
Street Works Inspections 
 

20. The ‘Specification of the reinstatement of openings in highways’ (SROH) outlines 
the standards for reinstating streets after completing street works. Anyone who 
carries out street works must reinstate the street once the work is finished, in line 
with these standards. 
 

21. The Council’s Street Works team has greatly increased inspection resource over 
the last 2 years, and following updates to legislation in April 2023, has just 
restructured to strengthen the enforcement team to manage the change to a 
performance linked inspection regime. 

 
22. As a result, companies that leave behind roads in poor condition could see 100% 

of their street works inspected, with charging set at £50 per inspection and a 
further £120 for follow-up inspections on defective reinstatements. Well 
performing companies will see a reduction in their inspection rates. Inspection 
rates are generated through the Department for Transport (DfT) Street Manager 
system. The rate was previously the same for all works promoters at around 
30%, but now they are based on the performance data which is generated 
through inspection reports.  

 
23. Previously, the defect charges were set at £47.50 for every 17 days a site was 

revisited and failed, the problem with this system was some defects rolled on for 
many months.  

 
24. The new legislation charges a higher rate but following a second inspection of a 

defective reinstatement the issue moves to the escalation process and potentially 
dispute resolution.  

 
Emergency and urgent works 
 

25. Major works are those: 
 

• Works identified in an undertaker’s annual operating programme, which are  
normally planned or known about at least six months in advance of the 
proposed start date, or 

• Works that require a temporary traffic order (not a temporary traffic notice) 
under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 for any works other than 
immediate works, or 

Page 4



 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 26 May 2023 
 
 

• Works with a planned duration of 11 days or more, other than immediate 
works.  
  

26. Standard works are works, other than immediate or major works, with a planned 
duration of between four and ten days inclusive.   
 

27. Minor works are works, other than immediate or major works, with a planned 
duration of three days or less.    

 
28. Immediate works are either:  

  
• Emergency works required to end, or prevent, circumstances, either existing 

or imminent, that might cause damage to people or property.   
• Urgent works as defined in the Regulations as street works:   

(a)  (not being emergency works) whose execution is required (or which the 
person responsible for the works believes, on reasonable grounds, to 
be required):  

(i)   to prevent, or put an end to, an unplanned interruption of any 
supply or service provided by the undertaker   

(ii)  to avoid substantial loss to the undertaker in relation to an existing 
service or  

(iii)  to reconnect supplies or services where the undertaker would be 
under a civil or criminal liability, if the reconnection is delayed until 
after the appropriate notice period; and  

(b)  includes works that cannot reasonably be severed from such works. 
 

Lane Rental Feasibility 
 

29. Over the past 3 years, the Council has considered the potential for the 
implementation of a Lane rental scheme (LRS) for Street works. In the first 
instance the Council was required to ensure that it had published the 
performance and financial monitoring reports showing its ‘well run’ Permit 
Scheme and a regime of inspections on the Council’s own works was 
implemented in order to report parity. 
 

30. The team are currently keeping up to speed on the progression of any 
applications for Lane rental schemes by other local authorities. To date two 
applications have been submitted to DfT from Surrey and West Sussex County 
Councils (CCs) and these join the trial schemes for Transport for London (TfL) 
and Kent CC. Outside of the south-east no local highway authority has indicated 
a future application is to be made, although Oxfordshire have indicated a 
feasibility study. 

 
31. Lane Rental Key Principles are to: 

 
• maintain a level playing field for all work promoters and demonstrating 

parity treatment 
• work with all stakeholders operating within the scheme to ensure there is 

an open approach to delivering the scheme objectives 

Page 5



 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 26 May 2023 
 
 

• provide reasonable periods of opportunity to work without incurring a 
charge to demonstrate that charges are genuinely avoidable in most 
circumstances 

• drive performance improvements and leading the industry through new 
ideas, innovations and good practices 

• take a practical and reasonable approach to decision making and any 
disputes that may arise 

• support the delivery of National infrastructure projects 
• provide transparency to the success and governance of the scheme 

through publication of monitoring and evaluation reports 
 

32. To apply to Secretary of State for the authority to run a Lane Rental Scheme a 
local highway authority (LHA) must: 
 

• evidence a well-run permit scheme 
• identify the top 5% most congested parts of the local highway network 

using the definition set out by DfT 
• apply the scheme to all works, only emergency works have exemption for 

48hrs. Charges must apply to the LHA’s own works 
• ensure charges incentivise works outside of peak times 
• arrange that the surplus revenue is made available to all works promoters 

to apply for schemes to reduce the disruption caused by Street Works. 
The income from lane rental is available to the LHA to cover the costs of 
running the scheme but the surplus revenue must be managed by a joint 
committee made up of all works promoters 

• arrange for the scheme to be trialled before it goes live, and; 
• review the scheme annually to ensure charges remain proportionate and 

are applied to the most congested roads and publish an Annual report. 
• Scheme development includes extensive consultation and application to 

Secretary of State with a lead time of around 18 months and cost circa 
£70,000 
 

33. Based on the monitoring of the pioneer LRS for TfL and Kent CC the key benefits 
of their lane rental schemes are: 
 

• the majority of utility works avoided a charge, and therefore were 
undertaken outside of traffic-sensitive times (84% across TfL scheme) 

• the average number of collaborative works sites where more than one 
organisation utilises the site at the same time have increased 

• there has been an increase in planned utility works that take place 
overnight (28% across TfL scheme), and 

• customer satisfaction related to roadworks has improved, including a 
reduction in reports of “un-manned sites” 
 

34. The aim of a LRS is to achieve all works on these roads to be undertaken outside 
of traffic sensitive times. However, the practicalities of works means this is not 
always possible and charges must be incorporated into the costs. 
 

35. Based on evidence from the existing LRS and Highways Authorities and Utilities 
Committee (HAUC) England Lane Rental Forum, there are a number of issues 

Page 6



 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 26 May 2023 
 
 

that require thorough assessment and mitigation. A detailed review by the 
Council’s financial and legal teams is required as well as consultation across the 
directorate to consider the impact of the: 

 
• cost to major highways works, for which the Council may be responsible. 

LRS can result in significant additional costs for the overall scheme. This is 
demonstrated by TfL where 99% of their works avoid a charge, but they 
incur around £2m p.a of charges because of high-duration major scheme 
work. Surrey CC have estimated an additional cost of £800,000-£1.3m p.a. 
in lane rental charges to their own works. 

• increased cost of the Council’s highway works on ability to attract funding 
• move towards out-of-hours working as a result of the charges and how to 

minimize social issues, such as noise and health and safety 
considerations  

• organisations may be incentivised to delay non-urgent planned 
maintenance work to their assets where this would be liable for a lane 
rental charge 

• additional costs for promoters to mitigate for lane rental charges, which 
can include additional employee and equipment costs and passing on of 
those costs to customers 

• additional costs to developers and utilities of major works and potential of 
dis-incentive for investment in Worcestershire 

• additional costs to developers and the level of developer contributions for 
community improvements 
 

36. Prior to moving forward with such a substantial legislative change to this highway 
authority it may be prudent to either await the support of neighbouring highway 
authorities within the West and Shires Permit Scheme or monitor any future 
schemes that are applied for outside of London and the South-East region by 
highways authorities which are more similar to Worcestershire. 

 
Purpose of the Meeting  
 

37. The Panel is asked to: 
 

• consider and comment on the detailed information provided,  
• agree any comments to highlight to the Cabinet Member, and 
• determine whether any further information or scrutiny on a particular topic 

is required. 
 

Supporting Information 
Appendix 1 – Presentation – Street Works 
 
Contact Points 
 
Alyson Grice/Alison Spall, Overview and Scrutiny Officers Tel: 01905 844962/846607 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
  

Page 7

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk


 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 26 May 2023 
 
 

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director of Legal and 
Governance) the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of 
this report: 
 
Agenda and minutes of the Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel 9 
May 2018 
 
All agendas and minutes are available on the Council's website here. 
 

Page 8

https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=388&MId=2259&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=388&MId=2259&Ver=4
http://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1


Street Works

P
age 9



Introduction

Highway Authorities have a ‘Network Management Duty’ under the Traffic 

Management Act 2004

All Utility Companies have a statutory right to excavate the

Public Highway to place and maintain their apparatus.

We cannot stop them from exercising their right, but we can;

• Protect our highways

• Coordinate, apply conditions, inspect and issue fines - PERMIT SCHEME

P
age 10



IN 2022

Permits and 
variations 
processed. 
Conditions 

and Co-
ordination 

applied
60212

99.97%

Permit Applications 
Deemed. WCC 

failed to process in 
time or works 

completed before 
an assesment of 

the permit can be 
done (No 

Coordination)
21

0.03%

CO-ORDINATION
60,212 APPLICATIONS PROCESSED 

Defect 
Inspections

7456
15.30%

Live Site - H&S 
Inspections 

11870
24.35%

Permit 
Conditions

7161
14.69%

Reinstatement 
Inspections 

16991
34.86%

Site 
occupancy

5263
10.80%

COMPLIANCE
48,741 INSPECTION CHECKS CARRIED 

OUT

CONTROL
4258 FIXED PENALTY 

NOTICES 
ISSUED

05 - Section 70
Reinstatement

635
14.91%

06 - Section 74
overun

1982
46.55%

08 - Regulation 19
Working without permit

105
2.47%

09 - Regulation 20
breach of conditions

1536
36.07%

P
age 11



TRENDS 2018-2022

33,052 34,035 

41,597 
46,957 

60,212 

 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

 70,000

2 0 1 8 2 0 1 9 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 1 2 0 2 2

PERMITS CONSIDERED OVER A  F IVE  
YEAR PERIOD

14569

24817 21250 31057

48741

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

60000

2 0 1 8 2 0 1 9 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 1 2 0 2 2

INSPEC TIONS CARRIED OUT OVER A  
F IVE  YEAR PERIOD  

This winter  huge increase in emergency and urgent utility works following prolonged freeze and quick thaw events

1 Nov 2022 – 31 Jan 2023 (3 months) we received 1552 immediate permits (IP’s) 907 of these were STW 

1 Nov 2021 – 28 Feb 2022 (4 months) we received 91 IP’s 47 of these for STW

£1,014,605 - Total fines for overruns (Section 74 notices) in 2022/23.

P
age 12



AGILE DEVELOPMENT

1st Class Permit Scheme = Co-ordination + Conditions + Compliance Control

Eyes on the ground

• Street Works is staff resource intensive, self funding, Permit scheme fees net zero

• 2021 - 3 additional inspection posts to boost compliance control.

• 2022 - move to Out of Hours cover for Street Works live site monitoring

• 2023 - 1 new post and restructure in response to new legislation

Agile Systems Development

• DfT £10m investment in Street Manager funded by income from trial Lane Rental 

Schemes

• Street Manager introduced in 2020 paving the way for live permit scheme

applications and ‘connected’ sites.

• 2023 new legislation to support continued development of Street Manager

• Live information from site to Street Manager 

• Digital vision for public information ‘first cone down to last cone up’

P
age 13



Lane Rental

Lane Rental – Key Principles

• Parity

• Collaboration

• Reasonable

• Innovation and good practice

• Deliver National Infrastructure

• Governance

P
age 14



Impact of a LRS

Based on the monitoring of the pioneer LRS for TfL and Kent CC:-

• majority of utility works avoided a charge (84% TfL);

• Joint site works increased significantly;

• Overnight works (28% TfL)

The aim of a LRS is to achieve all works on these roads to be

undertaken outside of traffic sensitive times. However, the

practicalities of works means this is not always possible and so Lane 

Rental charges must be incorporated into the costs

P
age 15



Mitigation measures for introduction of LRS

• WCC major highways works costs.
• TfL - £2million p.a of charges major scheme. 2015-2018 £16.4m i
• Surrey estimate cost to their works £800,000-£1.3m p.a.

• Move towards out-of-hours working as a result of the charges - noise
and health and safety considerations

• Planned works reduce, emergency works increase

• Costs integrated to Utilities budgets and passed on to customers

• Increased costs to construction in Worcestershire – disincentive to 
development

P
age 16



  
 

 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 26 May 2023 
 

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
26 MAY 2023 
 
WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 
Summary 
 

1. From time to time the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel will review its 
work programme and consider which issues should be investigated as a priority. 
 

Background 
 

2. The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel is responsible for scrutiny of: 
 

• Environment including Net Zero Plans 
• Highways  
• Flooding 
• Waste 

 
3. The Work Programme (attached at Appendix 1) is part of the Council’s rolling 
Annual Work Programme which was discussed by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Performance Board (OSPB) on 28 April 2023 and was being considered by Council 
on 18 May 2023. 
 

Dates of Future Meetings 
 

• 19 July 2023 at 10am 
• 25 September 2023 at 2pm 
• 30 November 2023 at 2pm 

 
Purpose of the Meeting 
 

4. The Panel is asked to consider the 2023/24 Work Programme and agree whether 
it would like to make any amendments.  The Panel will wish to retain the flexibility to 
take into account any urgent issues which may arise. 

 
Supporting Information 
 

• Appendix 1 – Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel Work Programme 
2023/24 

 
Contact Points 
 
Alyson Grice/Alison Spall, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844962/846607 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 17

AGENDA ITEM 6

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk


 
 
 

 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 26 May 2023 

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the in this case the Assistant Director for 
Legal and Governance), the following are the background papers relating to the subject 
matter of this report: 
 
Agenda and minutes for Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board on 28 April 2023 
 
Agenda for Council on 18 May 2023  
 
All Agendas and Minutes are available on the Council’s website weblink to Agendas and 
Minutes 
 
 

Page 18

https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=5697&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=5622&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/uucoverpage.aspx?bcr=1
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/uucoverpage.aspx?bcr=1


SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24 
 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
Date of Meeting 
 

Issue for Scrutiny Date of Last Report 
 

Notes/Follow-up Action 

26 May 2023 
 

Road Diversion Signs 
 
Issue of reinstatement and utility works (use of 
Section 58 restrictions) 
Severn Trent emergency work permits. 
 

 Requested by Chairman 22 
November 2022 
Requested by Panel 23 March that 
report covers 2 additional items as 
listed. 

19 July 2023 
 

Update on Street Lighting (to include LED 
conversion) 
 

 Requested by Panel 18 Jan 2023 

 Solar Power Generation & Use 
Electrification/Charging points. 
 

 Requested by Panel 18 Jan 2023 
Requested by Panel 23 March 2023 
that additional item is included. 
 

 Worcestershire Streetscape Design Guide 
 

 Prior to being considered by Cabinet. 
 

 Performance (Q4 January - March) and Year-
End Budget Monitoring 
 

  

25 September 2023 
 

Update on Buses  
Community Transport, DRT, Bus Service 
Improvement Plan and HTST bus passes 
 

September 2022 Requested by Panel 18 Jan 2023 
Requested by Panel 23 March 2023 
that the additional items be included.  
 

 
 

Performance (Q1 April to June) and In-Year 
Budget Monitoring 
 

  

30 November 2023 
 

Net Zero Plan Update   
 
Update on cutting congestion and the cycling 
and walking infrastructure 
 

 Regular update requested by Panel 
Nov 2022 
Requested by Panel 23 March 2023 
that the 2 additional items be included 
in update. 
 

P
age 19



 

 Performance (Q2 July to September) and In-
Year Budget Monitoring 
 

  

January 2024  
 

Scrutiny of 2023/24 Budget 
 

  

March 2024  
 

Performance (Q3 October to December) and In-
Year Budget Monitoring 
 

  

Possible Future 
items 
 

   

TBC 
 

Monitoring of Section 38 agreements 
 

 Requested by Chairman Feb 2023 

TBC 
 

Environment Act - update on developments 
when further guidance has been provided by 
Central Government 
 

 Requested by Panel on 7 October 
2022 

TBC 
 
 

Waste Management Service Contract 8 November 2022 Update report once contract 
extension has been agreed  

TBC 
 

Road Safety and Reduction of Speeding by use 
of Built Highways Infrastructure 
 

13 May 2022 Update in 12 to 18 months 

TBC Environment approach: partnership working 
 

 Suggested by CMR June 22 

TBC Rainbow Crossings 
 

 Suggested at OSPB on 29 June 2022  

Standing Items 
 

   

March/July/ 
Sept/Nov 
 

Budget and In-year performance monitoring 
 

  

November/January Budget Scrutiny Process   

Annually 
 

Flood Risk Management Annual Report 
 

23 March 2023 
 

 

P
age 20


	Agenda
	5 Street Works
	ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
	26 MAY 2023
	Summary
	Background
	Purpose of the Meeting
	Supporting Information
	Contact Points
	Background Papers


	02 item 5 Scrutiny presentation (003)

	6 Work Programme
	ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
	26 MAY 2023
	WORK PROGRAMME
	Summary
	Background
	Dates of Future Meetings
	Purpose of the Meeting
	Supporting Information
		Appendix 1 – Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel Work Programme 2023/24
	Contact Points
	Background Papers

	04 item 6 Latest version work programme


